
Children's Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Children's Scrutiny Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Wednesday, 12 December 2018

TIME: 2.00 pm

VENUE: Committee Room 4, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Minutes of the previous meeting - 14th November 2018 (Pages 1 - 4)

3  Verbal Update on Social Care Action Plan - Sharon Hubber and 
Chris Rourke 

4  Spotlight Review - Support offer to young people to prevent 
them becoming involved in crime in Salford 

(Pages 5 - 48)

5  Any Other business 

6  Date, time and business for next meeting 

Wednesday 13th February 2018 at 1.30pm for members of the panel - 
Young People achieving and progressing in education and work - 
TBC 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811
Helen.Oldland- Senior Democratic Services 
Advisor

E-Mail: helen.oldland@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CHILDREN'S SCRUTINY PANEL

Date of meeting 14 November 2018

Meeting commenced: 2.00pm
Meeting ended: 3.50pm

PRESENT: Councillor Adrian Brocklehurst in the Chair

Councillors: Charlie McIntyre, Jillian Collinson, Neil Reynolds, Ari 
Leitner, Michael Pevitt, Laura Edwards, Jane Hamilton, Stephen 
Hesling and Michelle Barnes.

Co-Opted Members - Keith Archer, Claire Harrison, Judith Elderkin 
Seamus Martin and Jacqui Morrissey.

OFFICER(S): Deborah Blackburn – Assistant Director – Public Health Nursing and 
Wellbeing
Helen Oldland – Senior Democratic Services Officer

1  INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Peter Dobbs and 
Barbara Goldstone. 

2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true and correct record as it 
was noted that, during the pre-meet, discussions had taken place in regard to joint 
work on Dental Health which was being undertaken by the Health and Social Care 
Scrutiny Panel. Mr Seamus Martin had indicated that he would be happy to attend at 
the Task and Finish group meetings on behalf of the Children’s Scrutiny Panel and 
contribute to this work.

RESOLVED: THAT the minutes of the meeting held on the 10th October be 
approved.

3.          ALTERNATIVE PROVISION SPOTLIGHT DRAFT REPORT

The draft Spotlight Report on Alternative Provision had been shared with the panel    
prior to the meeting and some minor changes to the text along with formatting were 
requested.
Once these had been completed the revised report would be shared via email with 
all the panel members before being included on the agenda for an Overview and 
Scrutiny Board meeting and then being presented by the Chair and the Vice Chair 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2

to the Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s Services. 

RESOLVED: THAT once the agreed amends had been made to the draft report,    
this could then be included on an agenda for a meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board. 

4.          EMOTIONAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

             The Assistant Director – Public Health Nursing and Wellbeing presented a detailed  
progress report which provided assurances to the panel in regard to the continuing 
work in respect of how improvements and investments in emotional health and 
wellbeing in Salford were being delivered. Work was continuing to be undertaken 
in integrating the commissioning of services jointly by the council and the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG). 

             Deborah Blackburn referenced the targets, drivers and aspirations which included 
the NHS 5 year Forward View for Mental Health, Future in Mind and the Greater 
Manchester Mental Health Strategy along with the Green Paper -Transforming 
Children and Young People’s Mental Health Provision. It was noted that Future in 
Mind (2015) was planned to deliver greater co-ordination across systems,  
improved access and a reduction in waiting times whereas the Green Paper was 
advocating that every school and college would identify a designated senior lead 
for mental health and trial a four week waiting time for access to specialist NHS 
children and young people’s mental health services. Salford schools were part of 
the pilot for the above initiatives and Debbie provided detail on the RAPID schools 
pilot which had been taking place in other GM authorities as part of the Trailblazer 
programme. 

             In addition the Assistant Director explained the GM Mental Health Strategy which 
included the following;-

 Resilience awareness 
 Support for families 
 Creative thinking 
 Consultation with young people and service users to develop the six ‘we 

statements’
 Ensure that young people have a voice - youth council involved
 Voluntary sector also included – CVS research 
 Neuro-development pathway being developed for Salford. 

             Panel members then received information in regard to the Thrive model and its 
implementation which moved away from ‘tiered services’ with “handovers” into 
areas of service rather than the previous “handoff” of care. Alongside this the 
CAMHS Transformation Plan was discussed which demonstrated how ‘Thrive-like’ 
we are in Salford. This included under ‘getting advice’ a robust web directory, my 
City Salford whilst under ‘getting help’ was the Emotional Friendly Schools initiative 
where schools applied for bronze, silver and gold accreditation. 

             The Assistant Director detailed the range of Commissioned Services including 
peri-natal support which involved the Family Nurse Partnership, Health Visitors  
and Midwives, LGBT support for young people and training for staff in schools. 

Page 2



3

Past issues with data sharing were highlighted as discussions at GM level in this 
regard were continuing and some the data available was being challenged. 

The funding investment of £134m with approx 60% of this focussed on Children 
and Young People’s Mental Health was detailed as plans were in place to expand 
the workforce, augment the system by applying Thrive and i-Thrive programmes 
and expanding the core hours of services plus weekend cover. 

Panel members raised questions in regard to recruitment difficulties and shortages  
as staff were allegedly reluctant to transfer out of the NHS into local authorities and 
new level entrants were also being deterred by this. The Assistant Director 
responded that in GM the devolved budget would support across the whole system
with a strategic commissioning function in place and with the locality workforce 
plan supporting the recruitment, capacity will grow.

The panel received information in regard to the 0-25 Emotional Health and 
Wellbeing training programme and the increasing take up of these including 
Suicide Awareness training which is delivered by Papyrus. The wide ranging 
support which was available from the LA and the CCG commissioned services was 
detailed for the panel along with impact statements from the professionals 
involved. It was noted that the following services were included;-

 Specialist CAHMS support for young people with learning disabilities
 Universal Services 
 Spiralling Minds – drama productions
 Goodbye Primary, Hello High – transition work 

Members of the panel raised questions in regard to those schools who do not 
currently buy into any service, what quality assurance was undertaken to ensure 
providers were giving a high level of service and what research had been 
undertaken to identify and select the schools who would participate in the pilot?  
It was explained that a headteacher from a primary school in Salford had been 
commissioned to undertake research along with the use of data mapping which 
was used to identify areas of need and then target the support appropriately. 
Panel members were of the opinion that investment in this area was long overdue 
and not yet reaching the most vulnerable in society. 

Further discussions took place in respect of changing perceptions and attitudes in 
general society to mental health and also reducing the stigma of asking for help 
and support with mental health issues, alongside building resilience in young 
people and their peers. The factors which cause and contribute to poor mental 
health including adverse childhood experiences were also raised and discussed by 
the panel members and an overview of the early intervention and use of new 
technology including ‘apps’ was provided. In addition support was needed for those 
hidden young people not in education or training (NEETS) along with students who 
drop out of college early in to the new term and those with caring responsibilities 
who have chosen not to share their home situation with professionals around them. 
The pressure felt by young people, the day to day use and often negative 
interaction with social media which impacts on their self esteem was also 
referenced by members of the panel as it was noted that young people need to 

Page 3



4

drive change in this area for themselves. 
It was confirmed that waiting times for support from 42nd Street were currently 
improving and the Assistant Director provided detail on the mental health and 
wellbeing workplace courses currently being delivered. Reference was also made 
to the Suicide Prevention Strategy and the self harm audit which would provide a 
truer picture of this issue in Salford. A suggestion was made that GP’s across the 
region should be trained in handling the first appointment made by someone 
seeking help and that a stress management plan for year 6 pupils and year 11 
pupils could be developed and widely shared. 

In closing the presentation and the question and answer session the Assistant 
Director acknowledged that the work detailed to the panel today was emerging and 
would need to continue to improve with a whole system approach and budget 
commitment to develop and train the workforce, influence culture change and 
respond appropriately to people who need help and support. 

The chair of the panel thanked Deborah Blackburn for her thought provoking and 
wide ranging presentation which had sparked great debate and scrutiny at the 
meeting. Thanks were also expressed to Councillor Laura Edwards who had 
requested that this issue be included on the work programme for the panel. 

5

6. 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Councillor Collinson raised the issue of a recent Freedom of Information request and 
subsequent response which concerned how much money had been collected in 
2017/18 in school fines and if this money had been put back into education. The 
response had been that the figure of £118,920 had been collected in 2017/18 and 
that the Council can use the money in any way it sees fit, so not necessarily back 
into education. Councillor Collinson sought clarity on this response and Deborah 
Blackburn indicated that she would raise this as a query with the Assistant Director – 
Education and Skills and that the response would then be sent to all the panel 
members. 

DATE, TIME AND BUSINESS FOR NEXT MEETING

Wednesday 12th December 2018 at 1.30pm for panel members. Business to be 
considered – The support offer to young people to prevent them becoming involved 
in crime in Salford. 

Page 4



1

Salford

Youth Justice Service

Partnership 

Business Plan

2018 – 2019

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



2

1. Introduction

The Salford Youth Justice Service Partnership annual plan is produced for and submitted to the Youth Justice Board which monitors 
the work of Youth Offending Services. It details how Salford Youth Justice Service will deliver services to improve outcomes for young 
people, families, victims and communities over the next year. This plan should be read in conjunction with Salford’s Children Services 
Plan, Salford City Plan and the Greater Manchester Youth Justice Services Strategic Plan. 

The aim of Salford Youth Justice Service remains focused on preventing offending and reoffending by young people.  This will be 
achieved by delivering an integrated service that ensures that young people are safeguarded and supported by robust risk 
management arrangements to protect the public and the victims of crime.

The Youth Justice Board monitors the Youth Offending Services performance against three key performance indicators:

 The number of First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System
 The number of young people supervised by the YJS who reoffend
 The number of young people receiving a custodial sentence

Appendix 1 details Salford Youth Justice Service’s performance in these three areas over the last five years.

In 2018 /19, there was a reduction in the number of Salford young people becoming First Time Entrants to the criminal justice system 
however there has been an increase in those custodial sentence compared to the previous twelve months. The latest Youth Justice 
Board data highlights a reduced number of young people in the reoffending cohort which has led to an increased reoffending rate. 

 Additional information is also provided to Salford Youth Justice Service strategic management board on a quarterly basis. This 
includes: 

 The number of looked after children supervised by the YJS
 The level of engagement of young people in education, training or employment
 The range of contact with victims and communities affected by crime and antisocial behaviour
 The number of young people remanded in custody ( Appendix 5) 
 The number of young people involved in prevention contact and an Out of Court disposal
 The number of young people transitioned to the National Probation Service
 Profile of young people receiving a custodial sentence

P
age 6



3

2. Progress on 2017/18 Prioritise

 Salford Youth Crime Prevention Strategy 

This strategy is being developed with colleagues from Salford’s Community Safety Partnership and will be completed in 2018. This 
will direct and support interventions to prevent offending and anti-social behaviour by children and young people. 

 YJS Early Help / Prevention Offer 

The YJS has a targeted early help / prevention offer that is supported by funding from the Greater Manchester Combined Authorities. 
Targeted groups include; those involved in sexually inappropriate behaviour or domestic violence where a police prosecution is not 
being pursued and Looked after Children identified at risk of becoming involved in offending or anti-social behaviour as they are over-
represented in Salford’s custody cohort. Attendance at anti-social behaviour warning meeting to prevents involvement in more formal 
procedures and any young person identified by the Police at risk of offending or becoming involved in anti-social behaviour.

Data confirms the number of Salford young people becoming a first time entrant to the criminal justice system has reduced again in 
2017/18 - Appendix 1. A review of this work over the last two years confirms that only 23% of the young people involved in this 
voluntary intervention went on to receive a criminal conviction.

 Enhanced Case Management Model Pilot 

A pilot study was undertaken with a small number of Looked after Children, supported by STARLAC, Salford’s therapeutic looked 
after children service and overseen by Salford’s Looked after Children Executive Board. This approach enabled YJS staff, to gain an 
informed insight into childhood adversity and trauma and how to adapt their approach to be more effective with young people with 
complex issues. 

Funds have been secured from the Greater Manchester Health Improvement Fund to ensure this work can be extended. The ambition 
is to develop a ‘whole service approach’, to childhood adversity and trauma with a workforce that is informed, thoughtful and effective 
in its work with young people and their families.

P
age 7



4

 Independent Feedback from Service Users 

 YJS volunteers attempt to make contact with the parents and carers of the young people involved with the service, along with victims 
who have taken up support, to gather feedback on the service they have received.  The YJS has a Facebook page that allows the 
community to comment on the reparation projects completed by young people. A third sector organisation has been commissioned 
to facilitate feedback sessions with young people. Feedback from service users is used to develop the YJS and inform practice.  

 Salford 4 Change Initiates 

Young people have been encouraged and supported, to become involved in a number of national and local events, to promote their 
views and knowledge. These have included a parliamentary round table discussion on knife crime, panel discussions with local 
service leads and Salford’s elected mayor. A number of events have been facilitated by Manchester Metropolitan Universities 
Criminology Department, to support young people to participate in the design of Greater Manchester Youth Justice Services. 

 Education, Training and Employment Developments  

In March 2019, the YJS achieved the AYM / Achievement For All quality mark, for its approach to supporting young people with 
special educational needs and disabilities. The service works closely with colleagues in education and health, to ensure young people 
are receiving the appropriate education and where identified with additional support both in the community and custodial settings.

Last summer the YJS received funding from the local authority, to deliver a multi-skills project, to a small number of young people, 
who had disengaged from education and post sixteen vocational training. This project was delivered over a six weeks period and the 
young people gained AQA certificates in a range of building skills, maths and English. They all engaged in individual coaching 
sessions with a Connexions Advisor. A review of this project confirmed a number of positive outcomes for the young people: 
compliance with court orders and post-custody licences, reduced reoffending, increased self-reported confidence and engagement 
in post-project, education, training and employment opportunities. The YJS hopes to secure funds to deliver a similar project this 
year.   

P
age 8



5

 Sexually Inappropriate / Harmful Behaviour  

The YJS has taken the lead for Salford’s pathway for non-prosecuted and prosecuted sexually inappropriate and harmful behaviour 
initiated by young people. This includes co-working assessments with colleagues in social care and delivering interventions to those 
young people assessed at low or medium level of concern.  

 Engagement with Voluntary and Community Organisations 

A number of voluntary and community sector organisations are either based within the YJS or have been commissioned to deliver 
specific pieces of work. The YJS values the input from these organisations, to enhance their work and support young people and 
their families when they exit the service.  

3. Service Structure and Governance Arrangements

The YJS in Salford is based within the Children Service directorate and has strong links to the Salford Community Safety Partnership. 
The service operates from a single base and is made up of a multi-disciplinary staff group, organised into four teams – see Appendix 
2 Organisation Chart. The YJS Principal Manager is line- managed by the Assistant Director for Specialist Children Services.  

In addition to providing performance data to the Youth Justice Board on a quarterly basis, Salford YJS provides information for the 
Children Services Plan and City Plan.

Salford YJS is overseen by a Partnership Strategic Board which meets on a quarterly basis and is chaired by Salford’s Director of 
Children and Adult Services. Appendix 3 provides details of the members and the organisations they represent. 

Performance information and financial updates are presented at the quarterly strategic board meetings. This details the YJS 
compliance with the submission of performance data, Secure Estate placement information, completion of national standards audits 
and procedures for reviewing community safeguarding / public protection incidents. 

P
age 9



6

4. Resources and value for money: 

Salford Youth Justice Service is funded by the Youth Justice Board Good Practice Grant with additional financial and staffing 
contributions from the local authority and a range of partners. Please refer to Appendix 4. These contributions will be used exclusively 
to deliver the statutory Youth Justice Service in Salford and to support the priorities detailed in section 6 of this plan. The YJB Good 
Practice Grant will be used for management development, practitioner training, volunteer expenses and service user initiatives and 
developing interventions and research opportunities. 

Salford Youth Justice Service is fully compliant with the staffing requirements set out in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.This includes 
a Police Officer, a range of health professionals, representatives from the National Probation Service and Children Services.

5. Partnership Arrangements

The collaborative approach taken by the Greater Manchester Youth Justice Services has led to a GM Youth Justice Service plan -
Appendix 5. Salford’s YJS Principle Manager represents colleagues on a number of GM strategic boards. These include the Local 
Criminal Justice Board (LCJB) for Greater Manchester, the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Victim Service Programme Board and 
Restorative Justice Board. The link with the Greater Manchester Mayor’s Office has developed a dialogue about youth justice 
initiatives and reforms. This work is linked to the Greater Manchester Directors of Children’s Services review. 

The YJS is integrated in local partnerships for children / young people and Criminal Justice services. The YJS Manager is a member 
of the Salford Violence Against Women and Girls Board, CSE steering group, Reoffending Board, Community Safety Partnership 
Board, Looked After Children Executive Board, Children and Families Board and The Serious Case Review Group. The YJS 
contributes to reports provided to the Salford Children’s Trust Board and Local Safeguarding Children’s Board. 

The YJS principle manager regularly meets with senior officers from the National Probation Service, HM Court Services, and Greater 
Manchester Police, health and local authority commissioners and Connexions, to review and develop our coordinated approach to 
service delivery.

 The YJS operational managers and specialist practitioners are involved with colleagues in Salford and Greater Manchester to 
develop joint responses to aspects of service delivery and development and quality assurance arrangements. These include 
resettlement, Court, early help, sexually harmful behaviour, ASSET Plus, ETE and Speech and Language.

P
age 10



7

6. Priorities for 2018 – 19

 Salford Youth Crime Prevention Strategy 

There is a strong commitment to complete this piece of work in 2018.It will be used to lead Salford’s approach to deter and support  
young people from becoming involved in offending and anti-social behaviour.

 Out of Court Disposal Arrangements  

The Greater Manchester Youth Justice Services are working with Greater Manchester Police, to establish an agreed approach, to 
Out of Court Disposals. A Greater Manchester Pre-Court assessment tool is being devised with the support of Manchester 
Metropolitan University, Criminology Department. The aim is to have an agreed approach to this work for young people in Greater 
Manchester.

This work will be bench marked against the HMIP thematic inspection report, ‘Out-of-court disposal work in youth offending teams’, 
(March 2018).

 ACE & Trauma Recovery   

The YJS has secured three years of funding from the Greater Manchester Health Transformational Fund. This will be used to develop 
the workforce’s understanding of and approach to adverse childhood experiences and trauma in families. A provider will be 
commissioned to deliver health and wellbeing advice and opportunities to families involved with the YJS.

 Participation  

In addition to gathering feedback from young people, their families, victims and the community. The YJS will demonstrate how their 
views will be used to develop the YJS. This work will be supported by Manchester Metropolitan University. 

 Support to Families  

The YJS will build on its restorative justice accreditation, to ensure that staff are trained and competent to offer mediation services to 
families in Salford.

P
age 11



8

 Complex Safeguarding 

The YJS principal manager will contribute to the establishment of Salford’s Complex Safeguarding Hub. The YJS will have formal 
links to this arrangement and contribute to the understanding of child criminal exploitation. 

 7. Workforce Development

The YJS has an annual workforce development plan which includes the following priorities for 2018 / 19:

 Adverse childhood experience  and trauma recovery 
 Sexually inappropriate / harmful Behaviour interventions
 Complex safeguarding issues
 Family group conferencing 
 Finding from Q/A and case audits 

All staff have an annual appraisal, individual supervision, and the opportunity to be involved in peer and specialist sexually 
inappropriate/harmful group supervision. This supports them to complete the range of tasks required to effectively undertake their 
duties and contribute to the priorities set for this year. Training and development opportunities include:

 Youth Justice Interactive Learning Space 
 Greater Manchester YJS Training Partnership & Peer Support 
 Salford Safeguarding Children’s Board
 Manchester Metropolitan University events
 Input from  partner and community organisations
 In-house events 

P
age 12



9

Salford YJS has an annual staff away-day and attendance at monthly service meetings and team meetings is mandatory. Staff are 
also encouraged to lead on particular aspects of the service, this includes working with girls, missing from home, diversity, Looked 
after Children, and participation. 

The YJS has qualified practice teachers available to supervise social work students undertaking final year placements. The YJS 
Nurse, Speech and Language Therapist and CAMHS practitioner also take students on placements and facilitate shadowing 
opportunities. Annually a final-year, criminology student from Manchester Metropolitan University will complete their final dissertation 
using YJS data and interviews with service users and staff. The next dissertation will focus on young people’s participation with 
Salford’s YJS.

The YJS currently has twelve volunteers. They attend quarterly group supervision and have access to shadowing opportunities and 
peer support opportunities.  

8. Monitoring and Reviewing Progress

This business plan will translate to an action plan which is reviewed at monthly YJS management meetings and monitored with the 
Assistant Director of Specialist Children Services. Quarterly reviews are submitted to the YJS strategic board which details progress 
and challenges throughout the year. 

9. Risk to Future Delivery and Youth Justice Outcome Measures

Salford Youth Offending Service continues to experience reduced funding, seconded staffing time and reliance on short term funding. 
This has led to a reduction in staffing and has also meant that the YJS is no longer able to provide a comprehensive prevention 
element within its range of activities. Targeted prevention work continues to be delivered on a limited basis to those young people 
identified by the Police, Anti-Social Behaviour teams and Children Services, who are viewed as at risk of becoming involved in the 
criminal justice system or receiving a civil disposal. This year has seen a slight reduction in the number of young people becoming a 
first time entrant to the criminal justice system. The YJS. If funding is reduced in the future this element of the service would have to 
be reviewed and possibly reduced, so potentially impacting on this reporting area – Appendix 1 

The locations of where young people are placed whilst serving a custodial sentence is a significant distance from home. This impacts 
on family and carers maintaining regular contact and the YJS ability to deliver an effective resettlement service. There has been an 
increase in the number of young people serving a custodial sentence last two years which is due to young people receiving repeat 

P
age 13



10

custodial sentences – Appendix 1. A significant number of these children are looked, have experienced the care system or been 
involved in child protection procedures. Therefore their resettlement is particularly challenging.  

The demand on remand beds remains unpredictable despite case-tracking and the establishment of regular meetings with 
representatives from the Courts. Whilst the number of bed nights has been fairly consistent over the last three years where these 
young people have been placed has significantly impacted on this budget. Last year, for the first time this budget was overspent by 
£98,468 – Appendix 5

Signed: Date: 
Kay Davidson - Youth Offending Service Principle Manager 

Signed:
Charlotte Ramsden - Chair of Salford Youth Offending Service Management Board  Date: 

P
age 14



11

Appendix 1: Key Performance Indicators over the last 5 years.

Reporting Period First Time Entrants Reoffending Rate Custodial Sentences

2013/14 139
April 12 – March  13
No in cohort 251
No reoffending117
No of offences 396
Rate of reoffending 46.6%

33

2014/2015 101
April 14 – June 14 
No in cohort 267
No reoffending 95
No of offences 331
Rate of reoffending 35.6%

30

2015/2016 91
April 15 – June 15 
No in cohort 51
No reoffending 24
No of offences 93
Rate of reoffending 47.1%

22

2016/17 89
April 16 – June 16
No in cohort 34
No reoffending 17
No of offences 59
Rate of reoffending 50.0%

12

2017/18 85 Not available 18

P
age 15



12

Appendix 2: Organisational Chart 

Assistant Director:  Sharon Hubber

Principal Manager:  Kay Davidson

Interventions Team

Operational Manager
Pauline Copeland

Case Work Team

Operational Manager
Dave Rankin

Case Work Team

Operational Manager
Katie Bottomley

Specialist Workers

Kate Hyett: Victim 
Worker

Graham Holroyd: 
YJS Support 
Worker

Anthony Coop: 
ISS Worker

Emma Sandbach:  
ISS Worker

Liz Yongo : 
ISS Worker

Rachel Lacey & 
Dave Atkinson: 
Mentors - 
City Wall

Barrie Galston: 
YJS Officer

Anisa Gilani: 
YJS Officer

Sarah Watson: 
YJS Support 
Worker 

James Cook: 
YJS Officer

Lucy Pitcher: 
YJS Support 
Worker 

Nicola 
Campbell: 
YJS Support 
Worker

John Wood: 
Learning Mentor

Ian Watts: 
Probation Officer

Hayley Clowes: 
YJS Officer

Rob Flint : YJS 
Support Worker

Kerry Hodgkiss: 
YJS Support 
Worker

Sylvester Grant: 
YJS Support 
Worker

Vicky Scott: YJS 
Support Worker

Della Healey: 
YJS Officer

Chris Mulleady: 
YJS Support 
Worker

Info Officer:
Michelle Smith

Nurse: 
Helen Nelson

CAMHS: 
Ross Elliot

Police Officer: 
Cat Bailey - Smith

Connexions: 
Sean McLaughlin 
& Sarah Allen

Speech & Language: 
Fiona Taylor

Substance Misuse Worker:
 Alex Duggan 

P
age 16



13

Appendix 3: Management Board Members 

 Director of Children Services (Chair) – Charlotte Ramsden 

 National Probation Service  (Deputy Chair) – Manjit Seale 

 Assistant Director Of Specialist Children Services – Sharon Hubber 

 Head of Looked After Children Service – Mike Kelly 
 

 Greater Manchester Police – Chief Inspector Amanda Dalamore 

 Salford Royal Foundation Trust – Michelle Ward & Michelle Morris

 CAMHS – Maria Slater 

 Community Safety Partnership – Jeanette Staley 

 Connexions  - Diane Sproson 

 Chair of Manchester & Salford Youth  Court Bench  - Carol Green 

 Chair of SHAPAS -   Debbie Ramsey 
  

 Elected member – Cllr Stone & Cllr Walsh 

Admin Support: Janet Huxley, Lynne Buckley, Zoe Thompson, Christine

P
age 17



14

 Appendix 4: Finances 

Agency Staffing 
Costs (£)

Payments in kind – 
revenue (£)

Other delegated
Funds (£)

Total (£)

Local Authority 115,000 406,701

Police Service 27,500

National Probation 
Service 

44,431 7,000

Health Service (CCG) 38,000

Police and Crime 
Commissioner 
YJB Practice Grant 511,107

Welsh Government 

Other:
 City Wall
 GMCA
 GM Health 

Transformational 
Fund 
 

30,000
45,000

50,000

Total 254,931 1,019,808

P
age 18



15

Appendix 5:  Remand Nights 

 2017 to 2018 : Budget £67,607

Establishment Total Number of Nights Costs

Secure Children Home 0 0

Secure Training Centre 271 £145,256

YOI 109 £20,819

Total 380 £166,075

 2016 to 2017 : Budget £75,322

Establishment Total Number of Nights Cost

Secure Children Home 0

Secure Training Centre 46 £22,540

YOI 262 £46,374

Total 308 £68,914

P
age 19



16

 2015 to 2016 : Budget £113,410

Establishment Total Number of Nights Cost

Secure Children Home 44 £24,596

Secure Training Centre 0 0

YOI 343 £58,941

Total 387 £83,537

P
age 20



17

Appendix 6: Greater Manchester Youth Justice Strategic Plan 2018 

GM YJS Strategic  
Plan 2018.docx

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 25 

 

Salford Community Safety Strategy 2016 – 19 
 
Salford Foreword 
 
The Community Safety Partnership is pleased to present our new Community Safety 
Strategy for 2016 – 2019.  It sets out our ambitions for community safety across the 
city over the coming three years.  
 
The overarching aim of the Community Safety Partnership is to build safer, stronger, 
more resilient communities in Salford and reduce the fear of crime.   
 
To achieve this aim we will focus our collective efforts and resources on five priorities 
where we will seek to achieve significant progress during the lifetime of this strategy.  
They align with national and regional legislation, policy and strategy and reflect our 
most pressing community safety issues as identified through a strategic threat 
assessment and by listening to the views of those living and working in the city. Our 
priorities are: 
 

 Driving Down Crime 

 Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour 

 Building Resilient Communities 

 Protecting Vulnerable People 

 Reducing Offending 
 
Community Safety remains a priority for Salford. Over the last five years we have 
reduced overall crime by 21%, however we know that both locally, regionally and 
nationally this trend is reversing.  Over the last three years we have seen a modest 
3% reduction but projections for the last 12 months predict a steady rise. In 
delivering this strategy we will work hard to reverse this trend by focusing on those 
crimes that matter most to residents. 
 
There has been and will continue to be unprecedented pressures on public sector 
funding.  This strategy will ensure partners are using our available resources in the 
most effective value for money ways. 
 
The city is a rapidly changing and growing place with a proud and fascinating history 
and an exciting and vibrant future.  Our population is growing and the city is home to 
a broad cross-section of people. We are proud of this diversity and the tolerance and 
respect that people display towards each other. We will continue to support and 
encourage greater cohesion amongst all our communities and citizens. 
 
The city is also increasingly attracting new business and development, in part 
because of better community safety. This reinforces the city’s reputation as a place 
to invest and it supports economic regeneration. 
 
An increasing crime trend together with continued significant pressures in public 
sector funding and a rapidly changing and growing place makes it imperative that the 
Community Safety Partnership looks at new ways of working together as partners on 
a regional, city and neighbourhood basis to best achieve the community safety aim 
and priorities. We will remain alert to the changing nature of crime and the 

Page 23



Page 2 of 25 

 

increasingly complex patterns of criminality and we will adapt our responses to 
emerging threats. 
 
It is the duty of all citizens to play their part in building safer, stronger more confident 
communities.  The Community Safety Partnership recognises the valuable role that 
community members contribute by reporting crime and disorder and supporting 
criminal justice agencies, and by taking responsibility for their personal safety and 
the safety of others.  Other community members will be encouraged and supported 
through this strategy to take on more active roles in building safer communities. 
 
 
Context - A changing city – the people and the place 
 
The City of Salford has seen the largest rise in its population since 2010 and is likely 
to see significant increases in the future.  This population growth is due to both birth 
rate and inward migration. 
 
The 2011 census results for Salford put our population at 234,000, whilst the 2016 
population is currently estimated to sit at 245,000, a 5% increase in 5 years.  By 
2020 the population is estimated to reach approximately 254,000.   
 
The age profile of the city’s population has changed over time with substantial 
increases in the number of young children, young adults, and older working age 
people.  In 2015 34.3% of Salford’s population were aged under 16 or over 64 and 
by 2020 it is anticipated that this will reach 35.3%.  
 
Trends suggest that the total number of households in Salford will increase from 
109,000 in 2015, to 122,000 in 2025, an increase of 11%, compared with 8% in 
Greater Manchester and 10% in England during the same period.  
 
During the period 2005-2015 there were just over 9,000 new dwellings built in 
Salford, with 55% of them built in Ordsall. In 2014/15 there were 975 additional 
dwellings provided in the city. The city’s total stock of dwellings is likely to increase 
by over 2,000 units per year over the next five years.   
 
Salford has an increasingly diverse mix of ethnic and religious communities. Latest 
census figures show that in 2011 14% of residents described themselves as 
belonging to a black or minority ethnic group, compared to just over 5% of the 
population in 2001. There have been significant increases in people coming from an 
Eastern European background. There have also been significant increases in people 
giving their ethnicity as Asian or Black/African.  Furthermore, the Orthodox Jewish 
community in the Broughton area is the second largest outside London and makes 
up 3.3% of Salford’s population. Other longstanding communities in the city include 
the Yemeni, Bangladeshi and Pakistani communities in Eccles. 
 
There is a comparative lack of quantitative data on lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans 
(LGBT) people and communities in Salford as information on sexual orientation and 
gender identity was not collected at the last census. Other sources of information 
indicate that Salford is likely to have more than 8,100 LGBT people over the age of 
18. It is probable that the percentage of gay men, in particular, is well above the 
national average. 

Page 24



Page 3 of 25 

 

 
Information on civil partnerships was collected in the 2011 Census and this suggests 
that the highest concentration of LGB people is in the east of the city, in particular 
the Ordsall and Langworthy neighbourhood. 
 
Salford University hosts a substantial and diverse student population of 19,700 
students of which 27% are from non-white ethnic groups.  The majority live in the 
area surrounding the university campus. 
 
Social deprivation remains an issue in Salford, with the latest indices of deprivation 
placing Salford as the 22nd most deprived local authority in England*  which is an 
improving direction of travel.  There remain, however, significant gaps between the 
most and least deprived parts of the city, and also between Salford and much of the 
rest of the North West and UK.  Levels of family poverty are higher in Salford than 
the national or Greater Manchester average. 
 
Unemployment has reduced from 7,000 in 2010 to 4,000 in 2015, although this figure 
is likely to remain static until 2020.  Just over 20,000 people in Salford (12.9% of the 
working population) are claiming out of work benefits.  This is significantly higher 
than the national average (9.2%) and slightly higher than the Greater Manchester 
(11.3%) and North West (10.9%) averages. 
 
Within this there are a significant proportion of people out of work due to health 
reasons, with 9.4% of Salford’s working age population in receipt of health related 
benefits, which again is significantly higher than that seen nationally (6.4%). 
 
Salford is a city of contrasts, ranging from the dense urbanised core of Central 
Salford, through established suburban housing areas, to areas of high value housing 
and open countryside to the west. 
 
Growth is a key priority for the city, and regeneration is at the heart of the council’s 
priorities and a major driver for delivering the council’s economic growth agenda. 
Between 2014 and 2016 Salford’s economy grew considerably with 4,000 additional 
jobs created in the city. 
 
Over the next three years Salford’s economy is forecast to grow at the fastest rate in 
Greater Manchester, with employment growth at 2.1% compared to 1.5% for the 
region as a whole.  Investment from both private and public sector sources in new 
housing, commercial and infrastructure schemes has facilitated this growth with 
£600m private sector and £230m public sector invested over the last three years. 
This level of investment is set to continue over the next three years with over £1bn of 
private sector and £220m public sector investment planned.  
 
*Ranking based on the average level of deprivation across neighbourhoods in local 
areas ranked nationally on the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2015, DCLG 2015  
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015 
 

Page 25

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2015


Page 4 of 25 

 

Introduction 
 
Salford Community Safety Partnership comprises public, voluntary and private 
agencies each with their part to play in making Salford a safer, stronger, more 
confident place.  This strategy provides a framework for the many activities that the 
partnership will deliver to improve community safety and community confidence in 
the city.  The level of growth in the city and the city region provides great 
opportunities for transformational change that can provide benefits for the people of 
Salford.  
 

This strategy does not stand alone.  It is aligned to other plans, in particular the 
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Greater Manchester Police and Crime Plan.  By 
aligning with other Salford strategies we can co-ordinate resources more effectively 
to protect and support all our communities. 
 

We recognise that deprived areas suffer a disproportionate amount of crime and 
disorder and are vulnerable to a breakdown of community cohesion. This plan will be 
driven by analysis identifying areas of greatest need and we will deliver localised 
activity to improve the quality of life in these neighbourhoods and to support people 
facing severe and multiple disadvantage.   
 
We also know that lower crime rates encourage businesses to invest in the city and 
we will do all that we can to support local economic growth. 
 
This plan describes our three year aspirations, how we will manage our resources 
and how we will measure our effectiveness, working in partnership with others. 
 
Strategic vision and priorities 
 
The overarching aim of the Community Safety Partnership is to build safer, stronger, 
more resilient communities in Salford and reduce the fear of crime.   
 

Page 26

http://www.gmpcc.org.uk/down-to-business/police-and-crime-plan/


Page 5 of 25 

 

Community Safety Priorities 2016 – 19 
 
Driving Down Crime  
 
Over the last five years, crime in Salford has fallen by over 21%, which equates to 
over 4,000 fewer victims of crime.  We know that in the last three years the levels of 
recorded crime have begun to rise nationally but in Salford we have maintained a 
small reduction in crime of 3% and, compared to Greater Manchester, we have 
reduced levels of violent crime, domestic burglary and other crimes that matter most 
to people. 
 
In the context of recorded crime levels however, this is not the whole picture.  The 
Crime Survey for England and Wales, a national survey conducted twice a year, 
shows continued and steady reductions for Greater Manchester in people reporting 
being a victim of crime. 
 
We will continue to target our resources to reduce all crime and to take account of 
the changing nature of crime - we know that as well as the traditional crime types 
other types of criminality are coming to the fore.  Crimes such as fraud and cyber 
crime are fast affecting peoples’ lives.  We will work as a partnership locally, and with 
regional and national agencies, to fully understand these crime types and develop 
preventative solutions. 
 
There is a small minority of people in Salford who are involved in serious and 
organised crime, often through fraudulent businesses which facilitate their criminal 
activity. Organised crime has a corrosive effect on our communities and we are 
committed to reducing the harm caused by these groups.  At a Greater Manchester 
level, tackling gangs and organised crime is co-ordinated through Operation 
Challenger.  We pioneered this work in Salford under Project Gulf and we will 
continue to use all of our powers to disrupt and close down serious and organised 
gangs.  This includes developing collaborative approaches such as more effective 
use of partnership intelligence to target these people and seize and redistribute their 
criminal assets.   
 
There is increasing awareness of the scale and impact of human trafficking and 
modern slavery and we will take a collaborative approach to disrupt such criminal 
activity and to provide a comprehensive united response to slavery locally, regionally 
and nationally. 
 
We recognise that the misuse of substances, including alcohol, fuels crime and we 
will intervene to move people out of crime and into treatment and support.  Psycho-
active substances (previously ‘legal highs’) have been an emerging threat over the 
last few years.  We will use the changing legislation to enforce against premises 
involved in their sale and we will continue to develop our drugs Early Warning 
System so that we can react quickly to emerging developments and risks. 
 
An important element of public safety is to ensure that we build and maintain safer 
environments, and improve the street scene so that people feel safe when out and 
about in the city.  As a partnership we maintain a mix of public and private realm 
CCTV cameras which are actively used to protect people and property and to assist 
partners including the police with the prosecution of offenders.  Designing out crime 

Page 27



Page 6 of 25 

 

in our neighbourhoods includes the introduction of alley gating schemes and using 
secure by design principles in new build developments.  Our registered housing 
providers raise awareness with their customers around opportunistic crime and how 
they can protect themselves and their home and provide speedy responses to 
environmental blight such as fly tipping, littering and graffiti to maintain a safe and 
clean street environment. 
 
 

Over the last three years our successes include: 

Project Gulf is the Community Safety Partnership’s response to serious and 
organised crime in the city.  In the nine month period up to October 2015 the team 
made 150 arrests, seized 10 kilos of class B drugs, raided 40 cannabis farms with 
over 1,700 cannabis plants and approximately 4.5 kilos of class A drugs (cocaine 
and heroin). 

We put in place 13 civil injunctions banning individuals from visiting certain parts of 
the city and carrying items that could be used as weapons. 

We introduced anEarly Warning System for drugs which is recognised as best 
practice nationally. 

We implemented the Greater Manchester Alcohol Strategy in Salford, 

Our CCTV systems directed police to 1063 incidents, with 175 arrests. 

 
 
Over the next three years we will: 
 

 Run targeted policing operations against robbery, burglary, vehicle crime and 
violent crime. 

 Collaborate with businesses, residents and the voluntary sector to deliver 
local community safety initiatives. 

 Use emerging technologies to better understand and address emerging crime 
trends. 

 Streamline intelligence sharing by co-locating teams and developing 
information sharing processes and protocols. 

 Continue to work with partner agencies across local authority borders to 
tackle counterfeiting criminality. 

 Deliver a refocused Project Gulf Strategy. 

 Use all our powers including civil injunctions, licensing, benefit fraud and 
criminal investigations to disrupt and close down serious and organised 
gangs. 

 Maximise the opportunities to reinvest capital assets recovered under the 
Proceeds of Crime Act to support the Serious and Organised Crime Strategy. 

 Use the principles of Community Alcohol Partnerships to engage and educate 
licensed premises to run responsible businesses. 

 Use our licensing powers to encourage licensed premises to withdraw low 
price/high alcohol products from sale. 

 Target the supply of controlled drugs and provide drug and alcohol awareness 
interventions for young people. 

 Expand our professional information network to enable better information 
sharing about emerging drug related threats. 

 Continue to invest in public realm CCTV, installing technologically advanced 
high definition ‘dark fighter’ cameras with 24/7 monitoring. 

Page 28



Page 7 of 25 

 

Tackling Anti-Social Behaviour 
 
We recognise the corrosive effect of anti-social behaviour on victims’ health and 
wellbeing and the negative impact on the wider community.  As a partnership we 
have strong multi-agency arrangements in place to tackle anti-social behaviour and 
reducing anti-social behaviour remains a priority for the city.  Over the last year, we 
have worked together to implement the new anti-social behaviour legislation, which 
allows us to use legal powers to target specific nuisance happening in local areas, or 
to modify individual people’s anti-social behaviour. 
 
We know that there are seasonal fluctuations in anti-social behaviour, in particular 
levels rise in the summer holidays and around Halloween and Bonfire Night and we 
plan specific operations and events at these times, such as organised firework 
displays. 
 
Tackling environmental crime such as fly-tipping, graffiti, littering, dog fouling and 
criminal damage is a priority for the community.  Environmental blight negatively 
impacts on the look and feel of neighbourhoods and people’s feelings of safety.  
Deliberate fire setting is still an issue in some neighbourhoods and we will continue 
to deliver interventions to reduce arson incidents. 
 
Anti-social behaviour is not at the same levels around the city.  We share information 
between agencies so that we can respond to emerging issues in neighbourhoods 
and deliver local responses with place based delivery models.  We use a problem-
solving approach to tailor our responses to the issue at hand, whether this is caused 
by an individual or by groups of people causing nuisance. 
 
Using this problem-solving approach we are able to respond appropriately with a 
number of interventions.  Aside from legal powers, partner agencies work together to 
deliver culturally sensitive mediation interventions, including restorative justice 
approaches, which guide the offender to address their behaviour and the impact this 
has on their victims.  
 
 

Over the last three years our successes include: 

‘Operation Pandora’, cracking down on flytippers, has secured 28 prosecutions of 
offenders for 35 illegal dumping/fly-tipping offences in one year. 

We issued over 1,500 littering or dog fouling Fixed Penalty Notices last year. 

Public Space Protections Orders have been used across the city to tackle specific 
nuisance. 

Youth Services delivered school holiday activities that ensured that 300 young 
people were able to participate in meaningful activity last summer. 

The World Café and the Love your Langworthy events event harnessed community 
engagement.  

We ran educational H2O water safety events in the Salford Quays area. 

Organised bonfire nights in our public parks reduced the incidence of firework 
related incidents. 

Neighbourhood Management teams have been supporting volunteer groups such as 
Friends of Eccles Rec, who litter pick and tidy the local area.  They have secured 
funding for planters to grow vegetables. 

Page 29



Page 8 of 25 

 

We used licensing powers to improve the street scene in Eccles Town Centre, 
including reducing street furniture outside pubs, which improves the character of the 
area. 

We conducted SNAP weeks in each community committee area to clear up 
environmental blight and to encourage community problem-solving. 

Over 300 cases of anti-social behaviour were resolved through partnership working 
and through informal interventions such as mediation and warnings.   

 
 
Over the next three years we will: 
 
 

 Develop the powers to grant Fixed Penalty Notices more widely across the 
partnership agencies. 

 Target perpetrators of anti-social behaviour through our neighbourhood 
community safety referral teams. 

 Enforce against environmental crime offenders including on the spot penalty 
notices and overt and covert operations. 

 Make full use of our licensing laws, including health and safety legislation, to 
improve the management of licensed premises. 

 Raise awareness of how to report environmental crime through the council’s 
Report It portal or via our housing providers’ access points. 

 Run weeks of action and walkabouts in neighbourhoods and in hotspot 
locations. 

 The council and social housing providers will engage residents in developing 
responses to anti-social behaviour including litter pick-ups and recruitment of 
Street Champions. 

 Run seasonal anti-social behaviour campaigns such as Safe 4 Summer and 
Operation Treacle. 

 Provide educational and diversionary interventions to reduce incidents of anti-
social behaviour and arson. 

 Provide positive activities for young people, particularly in the evenings, at 
weekends and during the school holidays. 

 Encourage schools to engage with neighbourhood working with young people 
as part of the Safer School Award programme. 

 Develop the Junior PCSO scheme in all neighbourhoods. 

 Deploy offenders on community payback schemes to assist with community 
cleanups. 

 Contract mediation services to deliver community reparation solutions. 
 

Page 30



Page 9 of 25 

 

Building Resilient Communities 
 
Community cohesion builds strong and safe communities.  In its simplest form, 
community cohesion is about people from different backgrounds getting on with each 
other, people contributing to how their community runs and people in the community 
having a sense of belonging.   We recognise that our communities are changing and 
we will support wider partnership working to integrate communities and promote 
community cohesion and sustainability. 
 
In order to support communities, it is important that there is a two-way exchange of 
information about issues and concerns between agencies and the public.  People 
need information about what we are doing to tackle local issues of crime and 
disorder and we need to understand tensions in the community. Together we can 
continue to work towards making Salford a safer place for everyone to live, work, 
study and visit.  
 
It is important that the public have the confidence to come forward and report hate 
crime in the knowledge that this will be taken seriously and dealt with. Hate crime is 
an offence against an individual motivated by race, religion or faith, sexual 
orientation, disability, gender or gender identity and has a profound negative effect 
on people’s confidence and feelings of safety.  As a partnership we have worked 
hard to increase reporting of these crimes and to improve our responses to victims 
and we will work closely with third party reporting centres and wider community 
organisations to support people to report and deal with the impacts of hate crime. 
 
We also work with the Home Office to ensure we are implementing the 
Government’s counter terrorism strategy, to protect against terrorism and domestic 
extremism. An essential part of this is to work with all our communities to promote 
cohesion and reduce tension in our communities. We will work with our communities 
to gather information to protect the public from the minority who may intend to do us 
harm. 
 
We recognise that the misuse of drugs, including alcohol, fuels crime and that their 
problematic use has a major impact on people’s health and wellbeing and feelings of 
safety.  We will ensure that our drug and alcohol services will continue to target 
those young people most at risk of developing substance misuse problems in the 
future to keep them safe from harm. 
 
People need to feel that the area they live, work or study in is safe.  We will listen to 
residents’ issues and tell them how we are responding.  We will do this by giving 
residents varied and appropriate opportunities for them to talk to us and for us to 
listen, including working with the VOCAL Community Safety Forum.  Some of our 
neighbourhoods are undergoing transformational change, and we will adopt a 
communications plan that uses the most appropriate media channels to engage new 
and emerging communities. 
 
 

Over the last three years our successes include: 

We ran neighbourhood Community Piggy Bank events in Winton and Little Hulton 
where the community agreed how to use recovered proceeds of crime monies to 
support local projects. 

Page 31



Page 10 of 25 

 

To raise awareness of anti-semitic hate crime and encourage people to report this 
type of crime, we distributed A5 fridge magnets to all Jewish households which 
included information on how to report anti-semitism – “Don’t tolerate it, report it”. 

The Youth Service delivered classes for 360 primary school pupils to educate on 
issues such as hate crime, respect, anti bullying, homophobia, racism and sexism as 
part of the Respect programme. 

The Youth Service have been actively deployed in detached youth work with young 
people at risk of becoming involved with gangs as part of the Prevent strategy. 

#kickitintotouch - Salford City Council teamed up with the AJ Bell Stadium (home of 
Salford Red Devils and Sale Sharks rugby league teams) to launch a new campaign 
in rugby – “Kick hate into touch”. The campaign was supported by Adrian Morley from 
Salford Red Devils, the club and stadium.    

We worked with young people to create a short film which raises awareness of Hate 
Crime Awareness Week, the #kickitintotouch campaign and the film One Word, the 
story of a young refugee who comes to the UK.  

We have worked intensively with young travellers from the Duchy site, with youth 
workers engaging them off site to help them to explore their issues and address their 
concerns. 

Salford Youth Council has been proactively promoting the national #donthateeducate 
campaign 2016.  

 
 
Over the next three years we will: 
 

 Implement the Cohesion policy and the Respect programme. 

 Raise awareness of staff responsibilities under the Protect agenda. 

 Strengthen relationships with high risk communities and increase 
opportunities to gather community intelligence to prevent harm. 

 Develop and implement a communications strategy for the partnership and 
continue to promote success stories to promote the work we are doing. 

 Continue to encourage local communities to report crime. 

 Deliver targeted interventions to raise awareness and understanding of hate 
crime and encourage people to report this crime in safe and supportive local 
reporting centres. 

 Work with community and voluntary organisations to develop more effective 
approaches to understanding, preventing and tackling hate crimes and 
incidents in our communities. 

 Challenge the attitudes of offenders in relation to hate crime. 

 Continue to work with schools to educate young people about the harmful 
effects of alcohol and drugs. 

 Publicise constructive unpaid work and reparation projects in the community 
completed by children/young people. 

 Use existing neighbourhood meeting structures to listen to residents’ views 
about their issues of concern. 

 Ensure that customer satisfaction and victim focus is at the heart of all service 
providers’ work in order to improve public confidence in agencies and the 
criminal justice system overall. 

 
 

Page 32



Page 11 of 25 

 

Protecting Vulnerable People 
 
The measure of a place that’s good to live in is how well we can support and protect 
our most vulnerable citizens. 
 
We take our responsibility to protect our more vulnerable members of the community 
from violence very seriously.  In relation to tackling domestic abuse we have a well 
developed multi-agency group (MARAC) that shares information about high risk 
domestic abuse victims and determines a risk focused, co-ordinated safety plan to 
support them.  The new definition of domestic abuse includes young people aged 
16-17 years old and we have incorporated this into our MARAC process with a 
weekly Young Person’s Domestic Abuse meeting.  It is important to address the 
devastating impact of domestic abuse on children and young people and we have 
specific measures in place to address these safeguarding issues.  
 
We include so called ‘honour’ killing, female genital mutilation (FGM) and forced 
marriage in our definition of domestic abuse. 
 
Salford was instrumental in introducing Clare’s Law to help women find out about 
violent partners but there is much more to be done to provide the early intervention 
and support that all victims of domestic abuse need to stop the cycle of violence, 
coercion and control. 
 
We have developed a multi-agency safeguarding hub (The Bridge) which embraces 
the strategic vision of our safeguarding boards to identify vulnerable young people 
and prevent them becoming involved in criminality and serious and organised crime.  
Over the coming months we will be expanding its service delivery through greater 
involvement of partnership agencies and we will develop our capacity to share 
information more effectively between agencies.  This will be an integral part of the 
Helping Families programme, aimed at turning around at risk and complex 
dependency families. 
 
The scale and nature of child sexual exploitation is now better understood and we 
have established a specialist team of officers, including social workers and police 
officers, to identify and protect young people at risk of child sexual exploitation.  We 
will continue to develop this service and the Phoenix programme. 
 
We also recognise that older people and people with mental health issues can be 
vulnerable and we will target specific community safety initiatives to protect them.  
 
Many vulnerable residents of Salford are housed in the private rented sector and the 
poorest standards of housing are also found in this sector.  The council has a well 
established Private Sector Housing team which targets rogue landlords and operates 
in partnership with other agencies. 
 
People can also be vulnerable because of economic inequality, as the effects of 
austerity measures and cuts in public services impact negatively on the poorest 
families.  These families can then find themselves in a cycle of debt and victim to 
loan sharks and aggressive debt collection methods and the risk of becoming 
involved in criminal activity.  We will work in partnership to break this cycle. 
 

Page 33



Page 12 of 25 

 

 

Over the last three years our successes include: 

We have increased the frequency of MARAC meetings to provide quicker 
interventions to protect victims of domestic abuse. 

We have introduced an early intervention project whereby first police call outs for 
domestic abuse incidents are referred through to relevant support agencies to 
reduce the risk of escalation. 

The development of The Bridge has enabled the co-located multi-agency team to 
provide an enhanced and integrated service for vulnerable young people. 

The Fire and Rescue Service CRIT Team helped over 900 people with prevention 
activity including Home Safety Checks, Safe and Well Visits, falls risk, handrails, 
security survey, Persons at Increased Risk Of Fire assessments.  

The council’s Housing Crime Reduction Team provided home safety measures to 
protect over 650 vulnerable victims of crime. 

A reconfigured drug and alcohol treatment system now includes specific support for 
families. 

We have opened a new community centre to help people sustain long term recovery 
from drug and alcohol misuse and a recovery house specifically for women. 

The council’s housing team have successfully delivered a rogue landlord 
programme and have targeted landlords who have a history of non compliance and 
also areas of the city where poor property conditions are prevalent. This has 
resulted in serious disruption to the activities of rogue landlords through the closure 
of unsafe premises where tenants were being exploited and the prosecution of 
landlords for Housing Act offences. 

The partnership Financial Inclusion Practitioner’s Group has worked in collaboration 
with the Illegal Money Lending Team and GMP to deliver loan shark awareness 
campaigns using social media and engaging with communities and tenant’s groups. 
We also successfully trained frontline workers to recognise signs to look out for 
when speaking to residents who may be involved with a loan shark and how to 
signpost people to help and support. We also promoted trusted alternative sources 
of affordable borrowing such as Salford Credit Union.  

 
 
Over the next three years we will: 
 

 Deliver targeted multi-agency work and early interventions to tackle domestic 
abuse in all its forms. 

 Work with GP practices to provide outreach advocacy support to people who 
disclose domestic abuse to them. 

 Provide priority target hardening for victims of domestic abuse within 24 
hours. 

 Bring in behaviour change programmes to address the behaviours of 
domestic abuse perpetrators. 

 Focus on delivering safeguarding interventions for children and young people 
affected by domestic abuse. 

 Train Young Person’s Domestic Abuse Advocates to work across the city. 

 Roll out safe and healthy relationship educational initiatives in our schools. 

 Develop the use of local authority and partner agency regulatory powers and 
civil orders to target businesses implicated in modern slavery and child sexual 
exploitation. 

Page 34



Page 13 of 25 

 

 Deliver Safe and Well visits by the Fire and Rescue Service to address health 
and wellbeing issues. 

 Protect older people through target hardening, fire risk assessments and 
doorstep crime initiatives. 

 Protect vulnerable social housing tenants by providing life coach and tenancy 
sustainment support. 

 Work with the voluntary sector to assist people who are suffering from social 
isolation. 

 Work with our more vulnerable groups such as the elderly and people with 
learning difficulties, to understand their particular needs and to address their 
issues. 

 Our drug and alcohol services will work closely with pupil referral units, young 
offenders and services for young people with mental health problems to 
reduce harm. 

 Continue to promote the anti loan shark message and the October “weeks of 
action” making affordable credit a central theme of the work to tackle poverty 
in the City. 

 
 

Page 35



Page 14 of 25 

 

Reducing Offending 
 
Reducing re-offending and reducing the harm caused by offenders to members of 
the public and preventing young people entering the criminal justice system are 
priorities for the city and partner agencies.  We will continue to strengthen integrated 
offender management arrangements to manage offenders and their offending 
behaviour.  A key objective for this strategy is to rehabilitate offenders focusing on 
the nine pathways to offending behaviour whilst prioritising the transforming justice 
priorities of the regional Integrated Offender Management programme, focusing on 
women offenders and youth and young adult offenders. 
 
We will ensure there is robust management of offenders and close working and 
information sharing between agencies and partners to ensure that offenders risk is 
effectively managed and that victims are protected.   
 
This approach enables us as a partnership to focus on helping offenders to be 
rehabilitated and be constructive members of their communities but also manage 
and reduce the risk posed by them. 
 
We also work proactively with our young people to divert them away from criminality 
and to prevent them entering the criminal justice system.  Where they do enter the 
criminal justice system our Youth Offending Service will work intensively with young 
people to rehabilitate them and divert them away from crime.  We will also focus 
interventions to protect young girls who are at risk of becoming involved with gangs. 
 
We have pioneered restorative justice approaches in the city which ensure that 
offenders take responsibility for the harm they cause to victims and the community 
and we will continue to develop this model.   
 
Through our National Probation Service, Community Rehabilitation Company and 
Youth Offending Service, we will provide both a risk management and behaviour 
change focus to rehabilitate offenders.  Offenders under the management of these 
services will have robust orders placed on them that prevent them carrying out 
further offending.  However the long term ambition of these services is very focused 
on behaviour changes so that offenders can be rehabilitated.  These services will 
provide holistic support through partnership working with other agencies and the 
offenders themselves to ensure rehabilitation can be achieved. 
 
 

Over the last three years our successes include: 

Successfully managed the transition to a new public sector National Probation 
Service and the introduction of new rehabilitation providers to provide statutory 
supervision and rehabilitation to all offenders under the government’s Transforming 
Rehabilitation programme. 

Developed an excellent Transition Protocol and practices to ensure effective 
transition of young offenders from the Youth Offending Service to the National 
Probation Service and the Community Rehabilitation Company. 

Having robust arrangements in place regarding MAPPA to effectively manage the risk 
posed by the most risky offenders. 

Been subject to a HMIP Inspection regarding female offenders and received very 

Page 36



Page 15 of 25 

 

positive feedback on the work we are doing in Salford both to rehabilitate female 
offenders but also to prevent them entering the criminal justice system. 

Strengthened the joint working between relevant Partnership Boards, for example 
between the Community Safety Partnership, Safeguarding Children Board and the 
Adult Safeguarding Board. 

The Youth Offending Service has worked with vulnerable young people and reduced 
the numbers of children and young people entering the criminal justice system. 

We have used restorative justice interventions stop offending behaviour and to help 
people to understand the consequences of their behaviour. 

Neighbourhoods commissioned Community Payback to address a number of 
environmental projects across the city, providing visible reparation for offenders in 
their communities. 

The Financial Inclusion Practitioner’s Group researched and published two reports 
into the extent and impacts of DWP benefit conditionality and sanctions in Salford. 
Qualitative evidence from local organisations linked the steep rise in sanctions with 
offending and reoffending highlighting the need to reduce benefit sanctions in the city.  

 
 
Over the next three years we will: 
 

 Continue to support the regional Transforming Justice programme. 

 Continue to achieve a reduction in drug related offending by tracking 
substance misuse offenders through custody until release and providing 
assertive follow on treatment services. 

 Work with voluntary and community organisations to develop more 
opportunities for offenders to develop volunteering, training or employment 
opportunities. 

 Develop our partnership protocols to deal more effectively with mentally 
disordered offenders.  

 Enhance the pathways available to rehabilitate offenders and thereby reduce 
re-offending and harm. 

 Further develop our IOM arrangements in relation to developments within 
Greater Manchester. 

 Develop a Youth Crime Prevention Plan to reduce first time entrants to the 
criminal justice system, including female offenders. 

 Use prevention and diversion triage to deal with Out of Court disposals to 
prevent children and young people receiving a custodial sentence and to 
reduce re-offending. 

 Work with young people on the Engage2Work programme – offering 
mentoring and support to take them away from crime with successful 
participants gaining the opportunity to enter a City West Housing Trust 
apprenticeship scheme. 

 Run Firefly and Fire Start programmes aimed at young people with fire setting 
tendencies. 

 Continue to use Community Payback opportunities for offenders to contribute 
to neighbourhood improvement projects. 

 Use Restorative Justice interventions in appropriate circumstances working 
with offenders. 

Page 37



Page 16 of 25 

 

 Implement the DWP Conditionality and Sanctions action plan to ensure that 
adults deemed “vulnerable” according to DWP guidance do not receive 
benefit sanctions. 

Page 38



Page 17 of 25 

 

Measuring our performance and overseeing our resources 
 
Monitoring and overseeing the partnership’s performance is the responsibility of the 
Community Safety Partnership Board.  We have developed a performance 
management framework that will inform the partnership so that we can see we are 
meeting our priorities, and where we are off track we can take decisions on 
corrective action and hold each other to account.   
 
The Board will have oversight of the collective performance of the partnership and 
will establish governance arrangements to ensure that the right delivery groups are 
in place to drive the delivery of the respective objectives in this strategy, with each 
group being accountable to the Board. 
 
In this vein, we have revamped our Partnership Delivery Group so that it is the multi-
agency tactical tasking and co-ordinating (doing) group that supports the Board to 
achieve its aim and priorities by proactively managing performance and risk. 
 
We will further develop our performance management framework so that local 
partnership delivery groups and community safety referral teams have timely and 
accurate information to manage performance in their respective neighbourhoods. 
 
Agencies that are part of the Community Safety Partnership will commit their 
collective resources to address the priorities identified in this plan.  The Community 
Safety Partnership will maximise the potential for attracting external funds to the city 
by proactively applying for these funds and collectively agreeing their use in line with 
this plan. 
 
We will conduct an annual assessment and improvement plan to ensure the 
partnership is meeting its statutory obligations and remains a fit for purpose 
partnership. 
 
Working in partnership 
 
Because crime and disorder are symptomatic of other community issues, it is 
important that we not only work across services and agencies but also across 
partnerships.  We will work with communities to encourage new partnerships.  We 
will also work closely with governance bodies across the Salford City Partnership on 
issues of shared responsibility or interest, including:   

 Substance misuse 

 Domestic abuse 

 Child Sexual Exploitation, modern slavery and other complex safeguarding 
issues 

 Hate crime and the wider Prevent agenda 

 Offending 
 
We have introduced an Inter-Board Protocol which describes the relationship 
between the respective boards under the City Partnership. 
 
As a city, we work closely with the Greater Manchester Combined Authority to put in 
place collaborative responses to mutual threats and to ensure the most effective use 

Page 39



Page 18 of 25 

 

of our combined resources.  This includes collaborative working with the Office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner to deliver our shared community safety objectives. 
We also have a close working relationship with our neighbouring local authorities 
and collaborate with them and national agencies on cross-border issues of mutual 
interest, such as better business compliance in the Cheetham Hill area. 
 
We will also continue to work closely with partners across the city region to deliver 
public service reform and devolution objectives, particularly around the justice and 
rehabilitation theme.  In doing so, we will apply the underlying principles of: 
 

 A new relationship between public services and citizens, communities and 
businesses that enables shared decision making, democratic accountability 
and voice, genuine co-production and joint delivery of services. Do with, not 
to. 

 An asset based approach that recognises and builds on the strengths of 
individuals, families and our communities rather than focussing on the deficits. 

 Behaviour change in our communities that builds independence and supports 
residents to be in control.  

 A place based approach that redefines services and places individuals, 
families, communities at the heart.   

 A stronger prioritisation of well being, prevention and early intervention.  

 An evidence led understanding of risk and impact to ensure the right 
intervention at the right time. 

 An approach that supports the development of new investment and 
resourcing models, enabling collaboration with a wide range of organisations.  

 
 
The responsibilities of the people of Salford 
 
It is the duty of all citizens to play their part in building safer, stronger more confident 
communities.  Many community members do and will continue to contribute by 
reporting crime and disorder and supporting criminal justice agencies, and by taking 
responsibility for their personal safety and the safety of others.  Other community 
members will be supported and encouraged to participate. 
 
We will support residents to build up a network of community champions and to 
strengthen voluntary participation in community safety and environmental 
improvement initiatives.   
 
We will make use of developing technologies to improve communication and to 
encourage reporting of crimes and sharing of information.  
 
It is vitally important that communities are enabled to find their voice and participate 
in providing solutions to problems and to shape stronger and more cohesive 
neighbourhoods. 
 
We will build our relationship with citizens and communities, based on mutuality and 
co-operation and explore opportunities for co-design and co-production of 
sustainable solutions. 

Page 40



Page 19 of 25 

 

Appendix One 
Partnership Performance Framework 
 
The following table sets out the proposed range of indicators which will measure the Partnership’s success in achieving its 
priorities. This range of indicators contains both quantitative and qualitative data that taken in totality will give the Community Safety 
Partnership a rounded view of its success.  The table is subject to change from time to time, in response to changes in national 
policy or guidance or the performance reporting regimes of individual member agencies of the Partnership.  Targets and desirable 
outcomes will be agreed annually or as required.   
 

Driving Down Crime 

1.1 Total number of all crimes recorded in the city 

1.2 Total number of victim based crimes recorded in the city 

1.3 Total number of stealing based crimes recorded in the city 

1.4 Total number of violent crimes recorded in the city 

1.5 Total number of serious violent crime in the city 

1.6 Total number of firearms discharges recorded in the city 

1.7 Total number of offences for supply/trafficking, supply with intent or production of drugs in the city 

Tackling Anti Social Behaviour 

2.1 The percentage of people who perceive there to be high levels of anti-social behaviour in their area 

2.2 The number of anti-social behaviour incidents recorded by the police in the city 

2.3 The number of criminal damage and arson incidents recorded by the police in the city 

2.4 The number of deliberate secondary fires recorded by the fire service in the city 

2.5 The number of deliberate primary fires recorded by the fire service in the city 

Building Resilient Communities 

3.1 The percentage of people who agree that the police and council are dealing with the anti-social behaviour and crime issues 
that matter to people in their local area 

3.2 The percentage of people who feel safe outside in their local area at night 

3.3 The percentage of people who feel they have the ability to influence priorities 

3.4 Reports of hate crime incidents and crimes 

Protecting Vulnerable People 

4.1 Domestic abuse incidents recorded in the city 

4.2 The number of domestic related crimes recorded in the city 

P
age 41



Page 20 of 25 

 

4.3 The number of sexual offences recorded in the city 

4.4 Number of Safe and Well visits carried out to vulnerable persons 

4.5 The percentage of the public who perceive drug use or dealing to be a problem in their area 

4.6 The percentage of people who perceive drunk or rowdy behaviour to be a problem in their area 

4.7 Number of adult drug users (all drug types) recorded as receiving treatment 

4.8 The number of substance misusing young people (under 18 years) to have received effective treatment  

4.9 The number of clients to have received effective treatment for alcohol misuse 

4.10 The rate of hospital admissions per 100,000 for alcohol related harm 

4.11 The proportion of all drug users who successfully complete treatment and do not re-present within six months 

Reducing Offending 

5.1 The level of re-offending by young people 

5.2 The number of young people who are first time entrants to the youth justice system 

5.3 The percentage of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET) 

5.4 Numbers of custodial sentences as a proportion of the overall number of young people’s convictions 

5.5 Young people's participation in positive activities 

5.6 The percentage of young offenders engaged in suitable education, employment or training 

5.7 Number and percentage of Intensive Community Orders successfully completed 

5.8 Number and percentage of Problem Solving Court orders successfully completed 

5.9 Number and percentage of Drug Rehabilitation Orders successfully completed 

5.10 Number of Alcohol Treatment Requirements successfully completed 

5.11 Re-offending rate of people subject to probation supervision 

5.12 Number of Restorative Justice solutions 

5.13 Total number of women offenders being supervised and in receipt of support 

5.14 Number and percentage of Community Sentences successfully completed 

5.15 Proportion of Rehabilitation Activity Requirements successfully completed 

 
 

P
age 42



Page 21 of 25 

 

Appendix Two 
 
List of partners 
 
This list of partners is not exhaustive.  We welcome new partners who can contribute 
to crime and disorder reduction activity. 
 
Cheshire East and Greater Manchester Probation Service 
City West Housing Trust 
Crown Prosecution Service 
Forest Bank Prison 
Greater Manchester Ambulance Service 
Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce 
Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service 
Greater Manchester Police – Salford Division 
HM Prison Service 
Manchester and Salford Magistrate’s Court 
Pendleton Together 
Purple Futures Community Rehabilitation Company 
Public Health England 
Registered Social Landlords 
Salford City Council 
Salford Clinical Commissioning Group 
Salford Community and Voluntary Services 
Salix Homes Limited 
Transport for Greater Manchester 
University of Salford 
Victim Support and Witness Service 
VOCAL Community Safety Forum 
Youth Offending Service 
 
 

Page 43



Page 22 of 25 

 

Appendix Three 
 
Community Safety Partnership governance structure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Partnership 

Community and 
Neighbourhoods 
Scrutiny Panel 

Community Safety Partnership Board 
Safeguarding Adults Board 
Safeguarding Children’s Board 
Health & Wellbeing Board 
Children and Young Peoples 
Trust 

Operational groups on a city 
and neighbourhood level, 

managing community safety 
issues on a short term basis 

Strategic groups on a thematic 
basis managing community 

safety issues on a medium to 
long term basis 

P
age 44



Item 9 
 

Page 23 of 25 

 

Appendix Four 
Useful contacts:  
 
Information about neighbourhood policing, local crime data and hate crime reporting 
centres can be sourced on the Greater Manchester Police website  and on the government 
crime mapping website. 
 
Information about the work of the Community Safety Partnership can be sourced at 
http://www.salford.gov.uk/crime-reduction-and-emergencies/. 
 
Information about all the partnership working in Salford can be sourced at 
www.partnersinsalford.org   
 
Information about the Office of the Greater Manchester Police and Crime Commissioner 
can be found at www.gmpcc.org.uk. 
 
We will engage with all our communities in line with the Salford City Partnership’s 
Community Engagement and Empowerment Policy. 
 
For up to date news our social media channels are: 
 
Salford City Council 
 
Twitter 
@SalfordCouncil 
@MayorofSalford 
 
Facebook  
www.facebook.com/SalfordCouncil 
www.facebook.com/SalfordCityMayor 
 
Greater Manchester Police 
 
Twitter 
@gmpolice 
@GMPSalfordCen 
@GMPSalfordWest 
@GMPSalfordSouth 
@GMPSalfordEast 
 
Facebook 
www.facebook.com/GMPSalfordEast 
www.facebook.com/GMPSalfordWest 
www.facebook.com/GMPSalfordSouth 
www.facebook.com/GMPCadisheadIrlam 
 
  

Page 45

http://www.gmp.police.uk/
http://www.police.uk/
http://www.salford.gov.uk/crime-reduction-and-emergencies/
http://www.partnersinsalford.org/
http://www.gmpcc.org.uk/
http://www.partnersinsalford.org/
http://www.partnersinsalford.org/
http://www.facebook.com/SalfordCouncil
http://www.facebook.com/SalfordCityMayor
http://www.facebook.com/GMPSalfordEast
http://www.facebook.com/GMPSalfordWest
http://www.facebook.com/GMPSalfordSouth
http://www.facebook.com/GMPCadisheadIrlam


Item 9 
 

Page 24 of 25 

 

How to report crime and anti-social behaviour 
 
To the Police: 
 
101 is the police non-emergency telephone number.  Use this to report, for instance: 

 A crime that has already happened 
 Getting crime prevention advice 
 Giving police information about crime in your area 
 Contacting local officers or, 
 Any other non-emergency 

 
Using 101 for situations that don’t require an immediate police response will help to make 
sure 999 calls can be dealt with speedily. 
 
Remember - In an emergency, where there is a threat to life or a crime in progress, 
always call 999. 
 
 
To the council: 
 
You can report anti-social behaviour or environmental crime such as litter and fly tipping, 
graffiti, dog-fouling through http://www.salford.gov.uk/report-it/. 
 
 
To your social housing provider: 
 
Tenants can report anti-social behaviour by contacting their housing provider. 
 
 
City West Housing Trust 
 
Email: asb@citywest.org.uk 
Website: http://www.citywesthousingtrust.org.uk/how-to-report-anti-social-behaviour 
Tel: 0300 123 5522 
Letter: Community Safety Team, 52 Regent Street, Eccles, Manchester, M30 0BP. 
In person at any area office. 
 
 
Salix Homes 
 
Email: enquiries@salixhomes.org  
Website: https://www.salixhomes.org/report-anti-social-behaviour 
Tel: Freephone 0800 218 2000 
Letter: Diamond House, 2 Peel Cross Road, Salford, M5 4DT. 
In person at Diamond House. 
 
 
Pendleton Together 
 
Email: thg.pendletontogether@togetherhousing.co.uk 

Page 46

http://www.salford.gov.uk/report-it/
mailto:asb@citywest.org.uk
http://www.citywesthousingtrust.org.uk/how-to-report-anti-social-behaviour
mailto:enquiries@salixhomes.org
https://www.salixhomes.org/report-anti-social-behaviour
mailto:thg.pendletontogether@togetherhousing.co.uk


Item 9 
 

Page 25 of 25 

 

Website: https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/your-home/anti-social-behaviour/reporting-
asb/ - must be registered as a tenant online before reporting. Alternatively can use the 
contact form on https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/contact-us/  
Tel: 0300 555 5557 
In person at Brotherton House, Loganberry Avenue, Salford, M6 5UX. 
 
 

Page 47

https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/your-home/anti-social-behaviour/reporting-asb/
https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/your-home/anti-social-behaviour/reporting-asb/
https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/contact-us/


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting - 14th November 2018
	4 Spotlight Review - Support offer to young people to prevent them becoming involved in crime in Salford
	Salford Community Safety Strategy 2016 - 19


